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Message from the Mayor 
 

Firstly, I welcome our new Councillor onto the team in Cr. 
Robert Eckel, (Trevor’s brother) who was duly elected to fill 
the vacancy left with Trevor’s passing.  

Our rural community is still battling an oppressive drought 
and with little rain insight these effects are also continuing to 
impact the business and community sectors.  There is a 
desperate need for rain across much of Australia and we 
hope it comes soon.  

With the completion of our flood damage road works and 
our final flood mitigation project in the previous financial 
year, this year it has been business as usual concentrating on our day to day activities and 
infrastructure improvements.   

Major infrastructure improvements included the upgrade of the Charleville Cultural Centre 
$380K and with the new Arts Centre $200K to be undertaken next financial year this is a 
project that will be finally realised after some nine years in the pipe line.  

Further minor infrastructure upgrades were undertaken in the townships of Augathella, 
Charleville and Morven at a cost of $203K. 

Other works completed during the year include major new kerb, channelling and footpaths 
in Morven, Augathella and Charleville $235K, Charleville Streets (Kennedy / Riverview) 
seals $200K, Adavale Road improvements $869K,  together with replacement of Plant and 
Equipment $671K. 

Council was again pleased to help with many minor projects and events run by the 
numerous clubs and their tireless volunteers across the Shire. 

Council welcomes the new business developments of the Rocks Motel and the RFDS 
base, building on confidence in the future of our region.  Council was pleased to assist the 
RFDS establish the base providing additional infrastructure and road networks at a cost of 
$122K.  

It is appropriate that I take this opportunity to thank my deputy, Councillor Annie Liston and 
Councillors Russell, Alexander and Eckel for their hard work and dedication to our 
community during the year.  

I would also like to express my appreciation to our Chief Executive Officer and Council 
staff for their assistance and efforts during the year.  

 

Denis Cook 

MAYOR      
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report 
 

With the completion of the large capital works programs 
last year namely the flood damaged roads works and 
flood mitigation works the financial report clearly 
reflects the down turn in revenues (around $50M) on 
the previous year and a ‘business as usual’ approach 
this year.   

 

Due to the crippling nature of the current drought and 
economic downturn council rates and charges increased by only 2% down from 4% the 
previous year with further reductions in expenditures necessary to continue to redress the 
negative result posted.  

Non- current (fixed) asset improvements (up $122M) largely due to the above capital 
works has substantially grown an already strong balance sheet however the sustainability 
of these assets overtime will be a continuing challenge for Council in future years with the 
consumption of these assets already impacting on our financial net result with depreciation 
up 80% on last year’s cost.  

Numerous staff changes have eventuated this year with a number of experienced staff 
availing of the opportunity to seek retirement and unfortunately this trend is likely to 
continue in the next year.  Council extends their best wishes to those staff as many of 
them have been long standing and experienced employees.  This will inevitably provide 
opportunities for other staff to be up-skilled.    

 A wide range of statutory compliance issues were dealt with and met during the year and 
our eleventh consecutive unqualified audit was delivered.  

I am very fortunate to have a large team of experienced staff who are dedicated to the 
Council and community.  I would also take this opportunity to thank our Mayor Denis Cook 
and Councillors for their support and guidance during the year.  

 

N W Polglase 

Chief Executive Officer 
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Community Financial Report (section 184 Local Government Regulation 2012) 
 
An analysis of the revenue compared to expenditure is as follows: 
 
With the difficult financial position of both Federal and State government’s local governments 
cannot expect recurrent grants to increase by the amounts as in previous years. The financial 
assistance grant for 2015 was reduced slightly (0.06%) from that of 2014. However the level of 
capital grants for infrastructure assets has been maintained.     
 
Due to the extreme drought conditions being experienced throughout the Shire Council levied rates 
and fees and charges at 2% for the 2015 year which is slightly below the RBA cost of living index. 
 
These factors put pressure on the recurrent revenue base however Council is maintaining its 
commitment to seek external funds as well as to tender for external roadwork jobs to supplement 
local funds.   
 
The repairs to the roads network due to flood damage is now complete and additional work is being 
undertaken utilizing funding from the Roads to Recovery and the Regional Roads Group programs. 
The Charleville Cultural Centre is complete aiming to attract additional tourists to the Shire. This 
together with improvements to recreational facilities, the continual maintenance of the water and 
sewerage reticulation systems, and support for the tourism industry ensures the future is bright.  
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In relation to expenses; employee costs make up 35% and materials and services make up 40% of 
Council’s operating costs. Employee costs include staff and related employee expenses while 
materials and services include such items as general operating costs to maintain and operate 
services to the shire. 
 
Depreciation consists of 24% of all operating costs and has increased significantly following the 
revaluation of infrastructure assets during the year up from $2.7M to $4.8M. 
 
While depreciation is a non-cash item, it is used as a guide to help Council retain sufficient funds to 
meet the costs of future replacement of plant and equipment, roads and other facilities in the Shire. 
 
Other ways to fund new assets, or upgrades to existing assets is to borrow.  Borrowing of funds 
should be used for long term assets in order to reduce inter-generational inequity. Council is always 
prudent in deliberations concerning borrowed funds. 
 
A summary of the level of Council debt is expressed in the figures below, which indicates that debt 
reached a peak in 2011 and is now on the decrease.  
 

 
 
The following graph provides a comparison of the level of Council’s outstanding rates over the last 
six (6) years.  The graph shows that Council’s effort in recovering these amounts improved up to 
2013 however the current drought has caused economic distress in the community leading to 
outstanding rates increasing. The outstanding rates have not increased over the 2014 year.  
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Council is fully committed to effectively managing the finances of the Shire.  Revenue required to 
provide a high level of service, in accordance with the Corporate and Operational Plans is 
continually being challenged and new sources of revenue remain difficult to obtain especially in the 
current economic climate. Cost savings and cutbacks can be achieved but not without impacting 
other areas of the Shire. 
 
After nearly 10 years of drought followed by severe floods in 2010, 2011, and 2012 and then 
followed by a further drought the Council faces the challenge of continuing to operate financially 
while remaining fiscally responsible.  
 
Particular Resolutions (section 185 Local Government Regulations 2012) 
 
Council did not resolve to make any changes to the policies referred to in sections 250(1)  
and 206 (2) of the Regulation. 
 
Councillors (section 186 Local Government Regulations 2012) 
 

(i) Remuneration schedule 

 
The levels of remuneration as published in the Queensland Government Gazette No. 74 dated  
5 December 2014 are based upon the recommendations of the Local Government Tribunal and are 
effective from 1 July 2015.  
 
 

Category 3 Position Remuneration Telephone Travelling 
 Mayor $97,684.00 $2,000.00  

Deputy Mayor $56,356.00 $1,000.00  
Councillors $48,842.00 $1,000.00 $3,600.00* 

 
 

* The travel allowance is paid to Augathella and Morven based Councillors  
 
The remuneration is paid in twelve equal instalments at the end of each calendar month. 
 
Councillor remuneration and meeting attendance – 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 
 

Councillor Meeting 
Attendance 

Remuneration Superannuation/ 
Expenses Incurred 

Total 
Remuneration 

Cr D. Cook 12 $97,488.00 $11,698.56 $109,186.56 
Cr A. Liston 13 $56,088.96 $6,730.68 $62,819.64 
Cr C. Russell 9 $46,372.92 $5,564.76 $51,937.68 
Cr P. Alexander 13 $48,739.92 $5,848.80 $54,588.72 
Cr R. Eckel 10 $40,616.60 $4,874.00 $45,490.60 
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(ii) Conduct and performance of councillors (section 186 (d), (e), (f) Local Government  

Regulation 2012 
 
 

Description Number 

Total number of breaches of the local government’s code of conduct committed 
by Councillors as decided during the year by the local government.  

Nil 

The name of each Councillor decided during the year by the local government to 
have breached the code, and details of any penalty imposed.  

Nil 

The number of complaints about alleged code of conduct breeches by 
Councillors, other than frivolous or vexatious complaints, that were referred to 
the conduct review panel during the year by the local government or the Chief 
Executive Officer under chapter 3, part 3A.  

Nil 

The number of recommendations made to the local government by the conduct 
review panel during the year that were adopted, or not adopted, by the local 
government. 

Nil 

The number of complaints resolved under the local government’s general 
complaints process during the year and the number of those complaints that 
related to a breach by a Councillor of the local government’s code of conduct. 

Nil 

The number of complaints made to the ombudsman, and notified to the local 
government, during the year about decisions made by the local government in 
relation to enforcement of its code of conduct. 

Nil 
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Administrative complaints (section 187 Local Government Regulations 2012) 
 
The following is a brief summary of the Council adopted policy “General Complaints Management 
Policy and Procedures”. 
 
The policy is broken down into three stages: 
 

(i) Preliminary procedures 
(ii) Complaint process 
(iii) Review by Ombudsman or other complaints entities 

It is the Council’s intent to provide a level of customer service that does not attract complaints, but 
acknowledges the rights of persons to provide feedback, both positive and negative, on its services 
and / or to lodge a complaint about a decision or other action Council takes. 
 
The complaints process has been instituted to ensure that, to the greatest practical extent, any 
complaint is dealt with fairly, promptly, professionally, in confidence subject to any legal 
requirement, and in a manner respectful to the complainant. 
 

Administrative complaints made 
during the 2013/2014 financial year 

Nil 
 

Number of complaints resolved 
under the complaints management 
process 

Nil 

Number of complaints not resolved 
under the complaints management 
process 

Nil 

 
 
There were no administrative complaints made in the 2014/2015 financial year. 
 
Overseas travel (section 188 Local Government Regulation 2012) 
 
No overseas travel was undertaken during the financial year.   
 
 
Grant Expenditure to Community Groups (section 189 Local Government Regulation 2012) 
 
In accordance with section 189 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, the following 
information is provided concerning expenditure on grants to community organisations. The Council 
does not operate discretionary funds. 
 

Description Amount 

Expenditure on grants to community organizations $124,000 

Total $124,000 
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Other Contents (section 190 Local Government Regulation 2012) 
 
Corporate and operational plans 
 
Council is required to adopt a Corporate Plan to guide Council’s decision making.  This document 
establishes the framework and identifies goals, objectives and strategies to be pursued by Council to 
meet the aspirations and needs of the community.  The plan is developed in consultation with the 
community and can be revised at any time during the life of the plan to ensure council is following 
its strategic direction.  
 
The Operational Plan is prepared annually and outlines Council’s work program for the next 
financial year including costs and completion timelines, this document is subject to quarterly 
reviews and must be consistent with the Council’s Corporate Plan.     
 
In accordance with legislative requirements, Council reviewed the operational plan on four 
occasions relevant to the financial period and on each occasion Council considered an assessment of 
its progress in the implementation of the operational plan as being satisfactory. Council receives a 
written assessment of the implementation of the operational plan at the end of each quarter. 
 
Registers and public documents 
 
Item Description Access 
Register of personal 
interests of Councillors 
and Senior Officials 

To record certain financial and 
other personal interests of 
relevant individuals. 

Councillor’s interests are 
available on Council’s website.  

Investment Register Record details of Council’s 
investments 

Available to any person 

Register of Local 
Planning Policies 

To record the current policies 
as set by Council 

Available to any person 

Register of Delegations 
of Authority by Council. 

To record all powers delegated 
by the Local Government or the 
Chief Executive Officer’s 
delegated powers.  

Available to any person 

Register of Delegations 
of Authority by the CEO. 

To record all powers delegated 
by the CEO. 

Available to any person 

Register of Local Laws To record all local laws set by 
Council  

Available to any person 

Register of Policies  To record the current policies 
as set by Council  

Available to any person 

Register of Roads To record the details of the 
shire roads. 

Available to any person 
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Item Description Access 
Contract Register To record the details of all 

contracts. 
Available on Council’s 
website. 

Register of Legal 
Documents 

To hold a record of all legal 
documents.  

Available to any person 

Register of Charges To record all charges levied by 
Council. 

Available to any person 

Building Application 
Register 

To record the details of all 
applications. 

Available to any person 

Cemetery Register To record all burial sites Available to any person 

Corporate & Operational 
Plan 

To document the goals and 
strategies set by Council for the 
period specified in each plan.  

Available on Council’s 
website. 

Annual Report To document the financial 
position and report on 
attainment of goals specified in 
the Corporate Plan and 
Operational Plan.  

Available on Council’s 
website.  

 
Concessions for rates and charges granted by Council 
 

(i) A 10 % discount on rates if paid by the due date 
(ii) Age pensioners in receipt of a full pension and having a Commonwealth Government 

Concession Card receive a remission up to $340.00 per annum. 
(iii) Council considers requests from Community organizations for the waiver of fees for the 

use of community facilities. 

Internal audit 
 
Council established an audit committee during the year with the Mayor (Chairperson), Deputy 
Mayor, the Director of Corporate Services and the Finance Manager as members. 
 
The Council appointed the LGAQ as its provider of internal audit services. 
 
The Audit Committee meet twice during this financial year.    
 
Competitive Neutrality 
 
Council has not been required to issue any investigation notices in the financial year under section 
49 of the competitive neutrality complaints procedures. 
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Council has not been required to respond to any Queensland Competition Authority 
recommendations as per section 52 (3).  
 
Senior staff remuneration (Local Government Act 2009 section 201) 
 
One (1) senior contract employee with a total remuneration package in the range of $150,000 - 
$199,000 
 
Two (2) senior contract employees with a total remuneration package in the range of $100,000 - 
$149,000 
 
Public Service Ethics 1994 (section 23) 
 
Council has implemented the code of conduct and undertaken regular education, training and 
review of procedures. 
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Murweh Shire Council 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Restated 
2015 2014 

Note $ $ 
Income OOO's OOO's 

Revenue 

Recurrent revenue 
Rates, levies and charges 3(a) 6,144 5,926 
Fees and charges 3(b) 1,087 1,182 
Interest received 169 581 
Sales revenue 3(c ) 2,759 7,314 
Other income 17 42 
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4(a) 7,002 3,696 

17,178 18,741 

Capital revenue 
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4(b) 927 47,961 

Total revenue 18,105 66,702 

Total income 18,105 66,702 

Expenses 
Recurrent expenses 

Employee benefits 6 7,064 8,110 
Materials and services 7 8 ,218 9,394 
Finance costs 244 299 
Depreciation and amortisation 10 4,606 2,694 

20,132 20,497 

Capital expenses 5 73 162 

Total expenses 20,205 20,659 

Net Result (2, 100) 46,043 

Other comprehensive income items that will not be reclassified to 
net result 

Increase in asse~ revaluation surplus 15 123,594 5,582 

Total comprehensive income for the year 121 494 51.625 

Tf1e above statement should be read in conj unction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies 



Murweh Shire Council 
Statement of Financial Position 
as at 30 June 2015 

2015 
Note $ 

Current assets OOO's 
Cash and cash equivalents a 3,499 
Trade and other receivables 9 1,575 
Inventories 291 
Total current assets 5,365 

Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 10 :294,578 
VVork in Progress 10 341 
Total non-current 3ssets 294,919 

Total assets 300,284 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payabies 12 1,675 
Borrowings 13 438 
Provisions 14 1,145 
Total current liabilities 3,258 

Non-current liabilities 
Borrowings 13 2,561 
Provisions 14 141 
Total non-current liabilities 2,702 

Total liabilities 5.960 

Net community assets 294,324 

Community equity 
Asset revaluation surplus 15 187,964 
Retained surplus 106,360 

Total community equity 294,324 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with ths accompanying notes and Significant 
Accounting Policies 
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Restated 

2014 

$ 
OOO's 
3,227 
6,345 

303 
9,875 

"173,::)52 
83 

173,135 

183,010 

5,104 
671 

1,136 
6,911 

3,096 
173 

3,269 

10.150 

172.830 

64,370 
108,460 
172.830 



Murweh Shire Council 
Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Asset Retained Total 
revaluation surplus 

surplus 
Note 15 

$ $ $ 
COO's COO's COO's 

Balance as at 1 July 2014 64,370 108,460 172,830 

Net result (2, 100) (2, 100) 

Other comprehensive income for the year 
Increase in asset revaluation surplus 123,594 123,594 
Total other comprehensive income for the year 187,964 106,360 294,324 

Balance as at 30 June 2015 187,964 106,360 294,324 

Balance as at 1 July 2013 58,788 62,417 121 ,205 

Net result 46,043 46,043 

Other comprehensive income for the year 5,582 5,582 
Increase in asset revaluation surplus 

Total other comprehensive income for the year 64,370 108,460 172,830 

Balance as at 30 June 2014 64,370 108,460 172,830 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting 
Policies. 
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Murweh Shire Council 
Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Note 2015 
$ 
OOO's 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Receipts from customers 14,777 
Payments to suppliers and employees (18,722) 

(3,945) 

Interest received 169 
Finance costs (244) 
Non capital grants and contributions 4(a) 7,002 
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 19 2,982 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Payments for property, plant and equipment (2,974) 
Proceeds from sale (disposal) of property plant and equipment 105 
Capital grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4(b) 927 
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities (1 ,942) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from borrowings- finance lease 
Repayment of borrowings and finance lease 13 (768) 
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities (768) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash held 272 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 3,227 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 8 3,499 

The above statement should be read in conj unction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting 
Policies 
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2014 
$ 
OOO's 

9,435 
(15,622) 

(6, 187) 

581 
(299) 

3,696 
(2,209) 

(53,098) 
302 

50,1 41 
(2,655) 

237 
(713) 
(476) 

(5,340) 

8,567 

3,227 



Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

1 Significant accounting policies 

1.A Basis of preparation 

The Murweh Shire Council is constituted under the Queensland Local Government Act 2009 and is domiciled in 
Australia. 

These general purpose financial statements are for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 and have been 
prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government 
Regulation 2012. Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all Australian 
Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and other authoritative pronouncements issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board. 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention axcepl for the following: 

(i) financial assets and liabilities, certain classes of property, plant and equipment and investment property which 
are measured at fair value. 

The Council uses the Australian dollar as its functional currency and its presentation currency. 

Recurrent I capital classification 

Revenue and expenditure are presented as "recurrent" or "capital" in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on 
the following basis: 

Capital revenue includes grants and subsidies received which are tied to specific projects for the replacement or 
upgrade of existing non-current assets and/or investments in new assets. 

The following transactions are classifies as either "Capilallncome" or "Capital k:xpenses'' depending on whether 
they result in accounting losses or gains. 

(i) disposal of non-current assets 

(ii) revaluations of investment property and property, plant and equipment 

All other revenue and expenses have been classified as recurrent. 

1.6 Statement of compliance 

These general purpose financial statements comply with all accounting standards and interpretations issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to Council's operations and effective for the 
current reporting period. Because the Council is a not-for-profit entity and the Australian Accounting Standards 
include requirements for not-for-profit entities which are inconsistent with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), to the extent these inconsistencies are applied, these financial statemen1s do not comply with 
I FRS. The main impacts are the offsetting of revaluation and impairmenl gains and losses within a class of asss~s. 
and the timing of the recognHion of non-reciprocal grant revenue. 

1.C Date of authorisation 

The financial statements wera authorised ior issue on the date they were submitt~d lo the Audilor-Ganeral for final 
signature. This is the date the management certi1icate is signed. 
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Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

1.0 Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards 

In the current year, Council adopled all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the 
Aus!;.9~ian Accounting Star.dards Board (AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for ihe curreni 
raporting per!od. Thg adop~:on of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations has r.ot resulted in any rr.ajcr 
chailges to Council's accol!nting ~olicies. Howe•1er the application of AASa 13 Fair Vsiue i\i1sas~:rament <:mel AASB 
201 i · B Amendments to />.ustralian Accounting Standards avising from AASB 13 has resaiced in greater 
disclosures. 

Mur.N~;, S[<ire Cou:-~cfl has not applied any ,.\us!ra1ian Accounting Standards a.1d lnterpretal!ons tha! l'13'1e been 
issued cut are not y~t effective. Council ap9lies standards and tnie•·!JmtatiO;'JS rn acco rdr::nc~ wiill ih'-lir rsspec!ive 
comm~ncement datas. 

At the date of authorisation of the financial report, the new or amended Australian Accounting Standards with future 
commencement dates are not likely to have a material impact on the financial statements. 

AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures (effective from 1 July 2016) 

Exposure draft 214 extended AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures to include not-for-profit public ssctor, The 
revised AASB 124 provides a partial exemption from the disclosure requirements for entities that are related by 
virtue of being controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the same government. Council will be 
required to disclose key management personnel remuneration for councillors, chief executive officers and senior 
management, in addition !o transactions with other related parties including family members. 

The reported results and position of the Council will not change on adoption of the other pronouncements as they 
do not result in any changes to the Council's existing accounting policies. Adoption will , however, result in changes 
to information currently disclosed in the financial statements. The Council does not intend to adopt any of these 
pronouncements before their effective dates. 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments (effective from 1 January 2018) 

MSB 9, which replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is effective for reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 and must be applied retrospectively. The main impact of AASB 9 is to 
change the requirements for the classification, measurement and disclosures associated with financial assets. 
Under the new requirements the four current categories of financial assets stipulated in AASB 139 will be replaced 
with two measurement categories: fair value and amortised cost and financial assets will only be able to be 
measured at amortised cost where very specific conditions are met. As a result Council will be required to m~asure 
its financial assets at fair value. 

1.E Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of Council's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The 
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to 
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and ongoing assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is 
~n the application of Council's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The 
~stimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to 
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and ongoing assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounHng estimates are recognised i:~ the period in which the estimate is 
revised and ir. future periods as relevant. 

Judgements, estimates and aswmptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following financial 
statement notes: 

Valuation and depreciation oi property, plant and equ;pment - Note 1.J and Note ·10 

Impairment of property, plant and equipment - Note 1. K 

Provisions • Note 14 
Contingent liabilities- i\Jote 16. 
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Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
Fo1 the year ended 30 June 2015 

1.F Revenue 

Rates and levies 
Where rate monies are received prier to be commencamen! of the rating/revying per!od, lhe amount is recognised 
as revenue in the pericd in which !hay are received, otherwise rales are recognised at the commencement of rating 
period. 

Grants and subsidies 
All Grants, subsidies and contributions are non-reciprocal in nature and are recognised as revenue in the year in 
which Council obtains control over them. On 13 June 2013 council passed a resolution to close all existing 
reserves and account for these restrictions tJsing an internal management accounting system. Internal restrictions 
that have been placed on council's cash and cash equivalents are now disclosed in Note 8. 

Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is recognised as the various performance 
obligations under the funding agreement are fulfilled. Council does not currently have any reciprocal grants. 

Rental income 
Rental revenue from investment and other property is recognised as income on receipt of rental monies. 

Sales revenue 

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are t ransferred to the buyei, 
generally when the customer has taken undisputed delivery of the goods. 

The council generates revenues from a number of services including contracts for road and earthworks. Revenue 
from contracts and recoverable works generally comprises a recoupment of material costs together with an hourly 
charge for use of equipment and employees. Contract revenue and associated costs are recognised by reference to 
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date. Revenue is measured at the fair value of 
consideration received or receivable in relation to that activity. Where consideration is received for the service in 
advance il is included in other liabilities and is recognised as revenue in the period when the service is performed. 

Fees and Charges 
Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional entitlement to the funds. Generally this is upon lodgement of 
the relevant applications or documents, issuing of the infringement notice or when the service is provided. 

·; .G Financial assets and financial liabilities 

Councll ·recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial Position when, and only 
when, Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Murweh Shire Council has categorised and measured the financial assets and financial liabilities held at balanc9 
date as follows: 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1.H) 
Receivables - measured at amortised cost (Note 1.1) 

Financial liabilities 
Payables - measured at amortised cost (Note 1 .M) 
Borrowings - measured at amortised cost (Note 1.0) 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately from each other and offsetting has not been 
applied 

.~II other disclosures relating to the mazsurement and financial risf< man<;gemen! o·i financial instruments are 
included in Ncte 2.2. 

7 



Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the rmanclal statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

i.H Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand. all cash and cheques receipted but not banked at the year end, 
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term. highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. 

·( .l Receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised at 1h!O! amounts due at the time of sale or ser1ice delivery i.e. the agreed purchase 
priC1l/ contract price. Settlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date. 

The collectabitity of receivables is assessed periodically and if there is objective evidence that Council will not be 
able to collect all amounts due, the carrying amount is reduced for impairment. All known bad debts were written off 
at 30June. 

Because Council is empowered under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2009 to sell an owner's property 
to recover outstanding rate debts, Council does not impair any rate receivables. 

1 . .J Property, plant and equipment 

Each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Items of plant and equipment with a total value of less than $5,000, 
and infrastructure assets and buildings with a total value of less than $10,000 are treated as an expense in the year 
of acquisition. All other items of property, plant and equipment are capitalised. 

The classes of property, plant and equipment recognised by the Council are: 
Land 
Parks 
Aerodrome landing strips 
Road, drainage and bridge network 
Buildings and other structures 
Plant and equipment 
Water and sewerage infrastructure 
Work in progress 

Acquisition of assets 
Acquisitions of assets are initially recoraeo at cost Cost IS determJneo as ttle ta1r value of the assets given as 
consideration plus costs incidental to !he acquisition, including freight in, architect's fees and engineering design 
fees and all other establishment costs. 

Property, plant and equipment received in the form of contributions, are recognised as assets and revenues at fair 
value by Council valuation where that value exceeds the recognition thresholds for the respective asset class. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date. 

Capital and operating expenditure 
Wage and materials expenditure incurred 1or the acquisilion or construe lion of assets are treated as capital 
expenditure. Routing operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capaciiy 
of the non-current asset is expensed as incurred. while expenditure that relates to replacement of a major 
component of an asset to maintain its service potential is capitalised. 

8 



Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

1.J Property, plant and equipment cont. 

Valuation 

Land and improvements, aerodrome landing strips, parks. buildings and other structures, and all infrastructure 
assets are measured on the revaluation basis, at fair value, in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant & 
Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. Other plant and equipment and work in progress are measured 
at cost. 

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying amount of 
each class of asset does not materially differ from its fair value at the reporting date. This is achieved by engaging 
independent, professionally qualified valuers to determine the fair value for each class of property, plant and 
equipment assets at least once every 5 years. This process involves the valuer physically sighting a representative 
sample of Council assets across all asset classes and making their own assessments of the condition of the assets 
at the date of inspection. 

In the intervening years, Council uses internal engineers and asset managers to assess the condition and cost 
assumptions associated with all infrastructure assets, the results of which are considered in combination with an 
appropriate cost index for the region. Together these are used to form the basis of a management valuation for 
infrastructure asset classes in each of the intervening years. With respect to the valuation of the land and 
improvements, parks, and buildings in the intervening years, management engage independent, professionally 
qualified valuers to perform a "desktop" valuation. A desktop valuation involves management providing updated 
infonnation to the valuer regarding additions, deletions and changes in assumptions such as useful life, residual 
value and condition rating. The valuer then detennines suitable indices which are applied to each of these asset 
classes. 

Further details in relation to valuers, the methods of valuation and the key assumptions used are disclosed in Note 
11. 

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the asset 
revaluation surplus, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as 
an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense to the extent it exceeds 
the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus of that asset class. 

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of the 
asset and any change in the estimate of remaining useful life. 

Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they relate. 

Capital work in progress 

The cost of property, plant and equipment being constructed by the Council includes the cost of purchased 
services. materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of labour overheads. 

Depreciation 

Land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life. Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment 
assets is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write-off the net cost or revalued amount of each depreciable 
asset, less its estimated residual value, progressively over its estimated useful life to the Council. Management 
believe that the straight-line basis appropriately reflects the pattern of consumption of all Council assets. 

Road formation and earthworks are non depreciable assets as per AASB Accounting for Road Earthworks. 
Council is currently reviewing its policies to ensure consistency with this interpretat ion. 
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Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
t or the year ended 30 June 20 15 

1 .J Property, plant and equipment cont. 

Assets are depreciated from the date or acquisition or, in respect of internally conslruclad assels, from the time an 
asset is r:ompleted and commissioned ready for use. 

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components 
are assigned useful lives distinct rrom the asset to which they relate. Any expenditure that increases the originally 
assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new dapreciabl:a amount is depredated 
over the remaining useful life of the asset to the Council. 

Major spares purchased specifically for particular assets that are above the assei recognition thre;;hold are 
capitalised and depreciated on the same basis as the asset to which they relate. 

The depreciable amount of improvements to or on leasehold land is allocated progressively over the estimated 
useful lives of the improvements to the Council or the unexpired period of the lease, whichever is the shorter. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives or property, plant and equipment asseis are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in the pattern of consumption, physical 
wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence, or management intentions. The condition assessments 
performed as part of the annual valuation process for assets measured at written down current rep lacement cost 
are used to estimate the useful lives of these assets at each reporting date. Details of the range of estimated useful 
lives for each class of asset are shown in Note 10. 

land under roads 

Land under roads acquired before 30 June 2008 is recognised as a non-current asset where the Council holds title 
or a financial lease over the asset. The Murweh Shire Council currently does not have any such land hOldings. 

Land under the road network within the Council area that has been dedicated and opened for public use under the 
Land Act 1994 or the Land Title Act 1994 is not controlled by council but is controlled by the state pursuant to the 
relevant legislation. Therefore this land is not recognised in these financial ;:;talements. 

1.1< Impairment of non·current assets 

Each non-current physical group of assets is assessed for indicators of impairment annually. 

1.l Leases 

Finance ieases 
Leases of plant and equipment under which the Council as lesse~/lessor assumes/transfers substantially =:II the 
risks and benefits incidental to the ownershi;> of the asset, but not :ha legal ownership, are :lassified as finance 
leases. 

Operating leases 
Payments made under operating leases are expensscl in equal instalments over lhe accounting periods covered by 
the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived f rom 
the leased property. 

·LM Payables 

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed 
purchase/contract price net of applicable discounts other than contingent discounts. Amoun!s owing are unsecured 
and are generally seltled on 30 day tl"!rms. 

10 



Murweh Shfre Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

·l.N Liabilities- employee benefits 

Salaries and wages 
A Ha~ility for sataries and wages is recog;1ised and measured as ihe amount unpaid at the reporting date at current 
pay ~·ates in respect cf employees' ser1ices up to that date. This liability represents an accrued expense and is 
~epcrted in Note 12 ss a pa~sble. 

Aon;;alleava 

A liability for annual leave is recognised. Amounts expected to be settled within 12 months are calculated on curreni 
wage and salary levels and includes related employee oncosts. Amounts not expected to be sellled within 12 
months are calculated on projected future wage and salary levels and related employee on-costs, and are 
discounted to present values. This liability represents an accrued expense and is reported in Note 12 as a payable. 

As council does not have an unconditional right to defer this liability beyond 12 months annual leave is classified as 
a current liability. 

Sick leave 

Council has an obligation to pay sic:~ leave on termination to certain employees and therefore s liability has been 
recognised for this obligation. This liability represents an accrued expense and is reported in Note 12 as a payable. 

Superannuation 

The superannuation expense for the reporting period is the amount of the contribution the Council makes to the 
superannuation plan which provides benefits to its employees. Details of those arrangements are set out in Note 
17. 

Long service leave 

A liability for long service leave is measured as the present vaiue of ihe estimated future cash outflows to be made 
in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The value of the liability is calculated using 
current pay rates and projected future increases in those rates and includes related employee on-costs. The 
estimates are adjusted for the probability of the employee remaining in the Council's employment or other 
associated employment which would result in the Council being required to meet the liability. Adjustments are then 
made to allow for the proportion of the benefit earned to date, and the result is discounted to present value. The 
interest rates attaching to Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities at the reporting date are used to 
discount the estimated future cash outflows to their present value. This liability is reported in Note 14 as a 
provision. 

Where employees have met the prerequisite length of service and council does not have an unconditional right to 
defer this liability beyond 12 months long service leave is classified as EJ current liability. Otherwise it Js classified as 
non-current. 

1.0 Borrowings and borrowing costs 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value ?Ius any directly attri::>utable transaction ccsis. Subsequent to :n:tial 
recognition these liabilities are measured at amortised cost. 

In accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012 council adopts an annual debl policy that sets out 
council's planned borrowings for the next nine years. Council's current policy is to only borrow for capital projec!s 
and for a term no longer than the expected life of the asset. Council also aims !o comply with the Queensland 
Treasury Corporati·:>n's borrowing guidelines and ensure that sustainability indicators rema:n within acceptable 
levels at all times. 

All borrowing costs are axpensed in the period in which they are incurred. No borrowing costs c>re capitalised on 
qualiiying asssts. 
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Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financ:lal statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

i .P Asset revaluation surplus 

The asset revaluation surplus comprises acljustmenls relating to change;; in value ·:>f proper!y, plsTl! and equipment 
(hat do not result frcm the use of those assets. Nel ~ncrerr.enta! changes in tha carrying value ol clasoes of non­
current assets since their initial recognition are accumulated in the asset revalllaticn su;plus. 

l ncr.~ases and decrease$ on revaluation are offset within a ~lass of asse!s. 

Where a class of assets is decreased on revaluation, that decrease is offset first against the amount remaining iil 
the asset revaluation surplus in respect of that class. Any excess is treated as m expense. 

When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in surplus in respecl of that asset i~ retained in the asset 
revaluation surplus and not transferred to relai:'led surplus. 

J.Q Retained surplus 

In reference to the comparative figures for the year ended 30 June 2014, this represents the amount of Council';; 
net funds not set aside in reserves to meet specific future needs. 

i .R Rounding and comparatives 

The financial statements have been rounded to the nearest $1 ,000. 

Comparative information has been restated where necessary to be consistent with disclosures in the current 
reporting period 

1.5 Taxation 

Income of local authorities and public authorities is exempt from Commonweallh taxation except for Fringe Benefits 
Tax and Goods and Services Tax ('GST). The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO or payable to the ATO 
is shown .~s an asset or liability respectively. 
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Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

2 Analysis of Results by Function 

2(a) Components of council functions 

The activities reiatir:g to the Council's components reportt'!d on in Note 2(b) are as follows 

,i\ Corporate Services 

Corporate governance 

The objective of corporate governance is for Council to be open, accountable, transparent :1nd delive1 
~slue for money community outcomes. This J.o part of th~ Cofporate Services function and includes 
;strategic and ~pdrauonal pianning, risk manageman!, ieggi and adm!nistrati•Je support. The 1'-./!ayor, 
Councillors ar1d Chief Executive Officer are included in .::orporate governance. 

Finance and information 

Finance and information provides professional finance and information services across all of Council. 
This function is a part of the Corporate Services function and includes internal audit, budget support, 
financial accounting and information technology services. The goal is !o provide accura!e .. timely and 
appropriate information to support sound decision making and meet statutory ob!igatlons. 

B 'Engineering Services 

Includes construction and maintenance of shire and state controlled roads, stormwater drainage. 
footpaths, bicycle ways, other private works, street lighting, plant management, engineering 
development and design. 

C Health I Environmental Services 

The goal of Health and Environmental Services is to ensure Murweh is a healthy, vibrant, 
contemporary and connected community. Health and Environmental Services provides well managed 
and maintained community facilities and ensures the effective delivery of cultural, health, welfare, 
environmental and recreational services. 

The goal of the waste management program is to protect and support our community and natural 
environment by sustainably managing refuse. The function provides refuse collection and disposal 
services, mosquito and other pest management programs. 

The sub-functions include animal control, pest control, health regulation and compliance, 
Immunisation, environmental monitoring, river management, parks and gardens maintenance, iefuse 
collection and disposal, waste management, swimming pools, racecourse complex. halls a~d centres, 
showgrounds, cemetery's, public conveniences, and aged care housing management. 

D Water and Sewerage Services 

(h Water Services 

The goal of this program is to support a healthy, safe community througl"l sustainable water servrces. 

{ii) This function protects and supports the health of our community by sustainabiy managing sewerage 
infras~ructure 



Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

2 Analysis of results by function 
(b) Income and expenses defined between recurring and capital are attributed to the folluwilt('J functions: 

.j::>. 

Year ended 30 June 2015 ~·· -····· --·-" ,_..... ~~-~,. 
I Functions I Gross program income Total Gross program expens~& Total Net result Net 1 Assets 

Recurring Capital income Recurring Capital expenses from 1ecurring operatmg 
--r-· 

1---Grant:_ _ Other -· G~ants Other ~--'"r~--1-----·--- op~ations surplus 
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 201!\ 2015 2015 2015 
$'000 $'000 $'000 · $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'00C $'000 $'000 $'000 1 

~------------+-- ·-1-------- -- --~- _;.._;~--+--.:....;.;:;.:;__4-__:::...::..:~~ 
Corporate services 

Engineering serv1ces 

Environmental Health services 

Water & Sewerage 

Total Council 

Year ended 30 June 2014 
Functions 

Corporate services 
Engineering services 

Environmental Health Services 

Water & Sewerage 

Total Council 
L--. . .. 

5,357 4,297 - 9,654 5,671 5.671 3,983 3,963 61 .866 

1,619 '2,747 927 - 5,293 8,525 73 8,598 (4, 159) (3,305) 206,422 

26 

7,002. 

732 

2,400 

10,176 

Gross program income 

Recurring 

Grants Other 
2014 2014 
$'000 $'000 

2,781 4,877 
852 7,342 

63 721 

2,305 

' 
3 ,6961 15,045 

. 
927 

Capital 

Grants Other 
2014 2014 
$'000 $'000 

1,400 
45,963 ' 

598 0 

- -
47.961 

758 3 ,905 3,905 i3,147) (3,147) 1,130 

2,400 2,031 2,031 369 369 30,866 

1a, 1os 1 2o, 132 I 73 ; 2o,2o5 ; (2.954)1 (2, 1oo) :;oo 234 

Total Gross program expenses Total Net result ---r----Net Assets 

income Recurring Capital expenses from recurring operating 

operations surplus 
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

8,858 .5,251 164 5,415 2,207 3,44~ 78,230 
54,157 8,105 8,105 89 46,052 92,919 

1,382 4,987 - 4,987 t4,203) (3,605) 773 
2,305 2,152 - 2,152 153 153 11,090 

66.1o2 I 164 1 
I 

20,495 20,659 j (1,754) 46,043 183,012 



Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

3 Revenue analysis 

(a) Rates, levies and charges 
General rates 
Water 
Water consumption, rental and sundries 
Sewerage 
Garbage charges 
Total rates and utility charge revenue 
Less: Discounts 
Less: Pensioner remissions 

(b) Fees and charges 
Aerodrome landing and ;Jsage fees 
Aerodrome head tax 
Cemetery fees 
Cosmos centre entry and souvenir sales 
Rental income 

Town planning and building fees 
Agistment fees 
Water connection and inspection fees 
Miscellaneous 

(c) Sales revenue 

Sale of services 
Contract and recoverable works 

Council 
2015 

$ 

OOO's 

3,695 
1,575 

95 
900 
518 

6,783 
{557) 

(82) 
6,144 

322 
9 

29 
403 
155 
43 

61 
14 
51 

1.087 

2,759 
2,759 

2014 
$ 

OOO's 

3,572 
1,533 

63 
879 
507 

6,554 
(552) 

(76) 

5,926 

338 
35 
45 

441 
149 
28 
45 
14 
87 

1 '182 

7,314 
7,314 

The amount recognised as revenue for contract revenue during the financial year is the amount receivable in 
respect of invoices issued during the period. The contract work carried out is not subject to retentions. 

4 Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 

(a) Recurrent 
General purpose grants 
State government subsidies and grants 

(b) Capital 

State government subsidies and grants 

5 Capital income 

Loss on disposal .of non-current assets 

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 

Less: Book value cf property, plant and equipment disposed ~f 

Total capital expenditure 

15 

6,597 

405 
7.002 

927 
927 

105 
(178) 

(73) 

3,317 
379 

3 ,696 

47,961 
47,961 

302 
(464) 
(162) 



Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

6 Employee benefits 

Total staff wages and salaries 
Councillors' remuneration 
Annual, sick and long service leave entitlements 
Superannuation 

Less: Capitalised employee expenses 

17 

Council 
2015 

$ 

OOO's 

5,709 
315 

1,128 
786 

7,938 
(874) 

7,064 

2014 
$ 

OOO's 

6,598 
217 

1,178 
811 

8,804 
(694) 
(694) 

Councillor remuneration represents salary, and other allowances paid in respect of carrying out their duties. 

Total Council employees at the reporting date: 
Elected members 
Administration staff 
Depot and outdoors staff 
Total full time equivalent employees 

7 Materials and services 

8 

Advertising and marketing 

Audit services 

Communications and IT 

Contractors 

Donations paid 

Insurance 

Staff training 

Repairs and maintenance- (Including repairs to flood damaged roads) 

Rental housing - operating costs 

Subscriptions and registrations 

Other materials and services 

Cash and cash equivalents 

National Bank of Australia - operating 

Queensland Treasury Corporation 

Cash on hand 

Balance per statement of cash flows 

There are no restrictions on Council funds at the 30 June 2015. 

16 

5 
55 
73 

133 

71 

43 

280 

48 

124 

419 

134 

6,629 

78 

97 

295 

8,218 

77 
3,420 

2 

3,499 

5 
54 
76 

135 

63 

26 

298 

47 

327 

404 

119 

7,582 

79 

102 

347 

9,394 

736 

2,489 

2 

3,227 



Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

9 Trade and other receivables 

Current 
Rateable revenue and utility charges 
Other debtors (2014 amount includes $2.2M for flood damage) 
Prepayments 
Provision for doubtful debts 
GST recoverable 

Movement in accumulated impairment losses (Provision for doubtful 
debts) is as follows: 

Opening balance 
Impairments reversed 
Closing balance 

Council 
2015 2014 

$ $ 

OOO's OOO's 

799 
400 
305 

(4) 
75 

1,575 

4 

4 

677 
4,495 

268 
(4) 

909 
6,345 

21 
(17) 

4 

Interest is charged on outstanding rates at a rate of 9.5% per annum. No interest is charged on other debtors. 

There is no concentration of credit risk for rates and utility charges, fees and other debtors receivable. 

Ageing of past due receivables and the amount of any impairment is disclosed in the following table: 

2015 2014 

$000 $000 
Not past due 876 1,590 

Past due 31-60 days 4 8 

Past due 61-90 days 693 

More than 90 days 393 

Impaired (4) (4) 

Total 1,270 2,287 

17 



Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

10 Property, plant and equipment 

()) 

Council • 30 June 2015 

Basis of measurement 
Asset values 

Opening gross value as at 1 July 2014 
Additions 

Disposals 

Note 

Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation suiplus i 5 

Transfers between classes 

Work. in progress • r.et rnoverr.ent 

Closing gross value as at :SO Jus;e <W~5 

Accumulated depreciation and lmDai~<riGII~ 

Opening balance as at 1 July 201 4 

Depreciation provided in period 

Transfers between classes 

Depreciation on disposals 

Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation surplu!l 15 
Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2015 

Tote: I written down value as at 30 J\lne 2015 

Range of estimated useful life in years 

Acjditions comprise 

Renev1als 

Otl1er additious 

Totals 

Land 

Fair value 
$'000 

4,430 

-
-
-
-
-

4,430 

. 

. 

. 
-
-
. 

4,430 

Land: Not 
depreciated 

-

$'000 
. 
. 
. 

Parks Aerodrome Road, drainage 
landing strip and bridge 

netwoti< 

Fair value Fair value Fair value 
$'000 $'000 $'000 

1 ,452 9,856 172,695 

76 . 1,576 

- - . 
. 298 54,427 

(12) - (57) 

- - -
1,516 10,154 228,641 

244 1,867 75,288 

47 170 2,568 
(4) . (57) 

- . -
- (577) (48,083) 

287 1,460 29,716 

1,2291 8 ,6941 198,925 

10-45 15 -120 10-120 

- -

$'000 $'000 $'000 

48 - 1,576 

28 - . 
76 - 1,576 

Buildings Plant and Water and Woti< in Total 
and other equipment sewerage progress 
structures infrastructure 

Fair value Cost Fair value Cost I 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

54,007 16,676 26,166 83 285,365 
594 395 76 - 2 ,717 

. (566) . - (566) 

- . 13,597 - 68,322 
618 {642) - - (93) 

- - - 258 258 
55,219 15,863 39,839 341 356,003 

--

10,311 9,444 15,077 - 112,231 

779 535 507 . 4,606 
292 (323) (1) (93) 

. (390) - . (390) 

. . (6,610) - (55,270) 
11,382 9,266 8,973 - 61,084 

43,837 ti,597i 30,566 341 294,919 

10-100 5-20 10. 140 WIP: Not 
depreciated l 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

68 395 - . 2,087 
526 . 76 . 630 
594 395 76 - 2,717 



Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the Financial Stat&r.lents 
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Council- 30 June 2014 

Basis of measurement 

Asset values 
Opening gross value ;;s at 1 JIJiy 2013 

Additions 

Disposals 

Note 

Revaluation adjustment to ~s~et r~w.:lllatiou Slll't:Jiu>:: 1 S 

w 

!il 
2-. 
:.. 

~0 
~)> 
~0 
Cll 
3 
Cll 
::J 
1ft 

Transfer between classes 
Work in progress· net moverneui 

Closing gross value c.s at 30 Jun~ 20·14 

Accumulated depn!ciation and impairmlmt 
Opening balance a:.> <:~t 1 July 2013 

Depreciation provided ill perit.t.l 

Depreciation on disposills 

Revaluation adjusttnent to ass~:t r.;.valuatiun surplus 

Transfers between classes 

Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2014 

Total written down valu11 as at 30 June 2014 

Range of estimated useful life irt years 

15 

Land ! Parks Aerodrome Road, drainage Buildings Plant and Water and Work in Total 
landing strip and bridge and other equipment sewerage progress 

I network structures infrastructure 

Fair value Fair value Fair value Fairvatue Fairvatue Cost Fair value Cost 
$'000 S'OOO S'OOO $'000 $'000 $'000 S'OOO $'000 s·ooo 

2.491 1,144 4,994 107,275 54,380 15,603 26,166 14,643 226:596 
- . - 65,420 sea - 1.652 . - 6'/ ;/601 

'" ' .... . 
(1,016) . ~I (1) . . . . . (1 ,016~1 <95) . -. 

1,940 308 4862 . . - 7.015 
(966) 

,_ . . - - 437 - (529~1 - . . . - - - (14,560) (14,560) 
4,430 1,452 9,856 172,695 54,007 16,676 26,166 83 285,366 

3~ 1.3191 74,720~ 8 ,992~ 9.428 14,591 j 109.083 30 . . s; ssa ass - sss 486 - . 2,694 

• • : • -~ . (526). - - • (526) ------·- --··--·-... -----.. -- -·--~-----... ------·- ····-·----- ------------· --·---·- ... -- ·-----------·-· -~--------:J:~------~~: ·--------~~~ ---------~---: _______ _?~} ·---------~ ___________ : ------------~ -------~~~~~ 
(330} (123) • - (453) 

0 244 1,867 75,288 10,311 9,444 15,077 112,231 

4,4301 1 ,208 7,989 97,407 43,696 7,232: 11,089 83 173.1351 

j 
Land: Not 40-100 12 5-100 10.60 20-60 20-40 WIP: Not I 

depreciated depreciated. I 

-- ~-- - · 



Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

11 Fair Value Measurements 

(i) Recognised fair value me01surements 

Council measures and recognises the following; assets at fair value on a re-curring basis: 

• Land 
• Parks 
• Aerodrome landing strips 
- Road, drainage and bridge network 
- Building and other structures 

- Water and sewerage infrastructure 

Council does not measure any liabilities at fai; value on a recurring basis. 

Council borrowings are measured at amortised cost with interest recognised In profit or loss when incurred. The fair 
value of borrowings disclosed in note 13 is provided by the Queensland Treasury Corporation and represents the 
contractual undiscounted cash flows at balance date (level 2). 

The carrying amounts oftrade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their 
short-term nature (level 2). 

In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis: 

.. Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Lavel1) 

• Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly obseiVable for the asset or Hability (level 2) 

Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability (level3) 

The following table categorises fair value measurements as either level2 or level3 in accordance with AASB 13. 
Council does not have any assets or liabilities measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as level 
·;j, 

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, 
where it is available, and minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an 
asset are obseiVable, the asset is included in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable 
market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case for Council infrastructure assets, which are of a specialist 
nature for which there is no active market for similar or identical assets. These assets are valued using a combination 
of observable and unobservable inputs. 

This table presents the Council's assets measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2015. 

Council Note Level2 level3 Totals 

As at 30/6/2015 
(Significant other Significant 

observable inputs) unobservable inputs 

Recurring fair value measurements 
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Land 10 4,430 4.430 . 4,430 4,430 

Parks 10 - . 1,254 1,208 1,254 1,208 

Aerodrome landing_ str~ 10 - . 8,694 7,989 8,694 7,989 

Roads. bridges and drainage 10 - . 198,926 97,407 198,926 97,407 

Buildings 10 . . . . - . 

Council I Recreational . 43,124 43,306 43,124 43,306 

Residential/ Commercial 377 390 . . 377 390 

Water and sewerage 10 . . 30,864 11,089 30,864 11,089 

Totals 4,807 4,820 282,862 160,999 287,669 165,819 

20 QAO 
certified statements 
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11 fair Va.lue Measurements cont. 

I 

~ii) Valuation techniques used to deriva fair values for level 2 and level 3 valusRions 

Specific valuation techniquea used to value Council assets comprisa: 

land (level 2) 

Land fair values were determined by independent valuer, APV Valuers and Asset Management effective 1 July 2013. 
Level 2 valuation inputs were used to value all land. Sales prices of comparable land sites in close proximity are 
adjusled for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant inputs into this valuation approach 
are price per sc;uara me·!;e. 

Buildings (level 2 ~ 

Council's non-speciglised level 2 building assets consist of aged care residential premises and two commercial 
properties and their fair value was determined by independent valuer, APV Valuers and Asset Management effective i 
July 2013. The fair value of the aged care properties has been deriveo from sales prices of comparable properties after 
adjusting for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant inputs into this valuation approach 
are price per square metre. 

Commercial properties have been generally derived using a combination of sales direct comparison approach and 
capitalisation of income approach. Fair value has been derived from sales prices of comparable properties after adjustin 
for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant inputs into this valuation approach are rental 
yields and price per square metre. 

Buildings (Jevel3) 

The fair value of Councll's specialised level 3 buildings were also determined by independent valuer, APV Valuers and 
Asset Management effective 1 July 2013. 

Specialised buildings were valued using the cost approach using professionally qualified Registered Va luers. The 
approach estimated the replacement cost for each building by componentising the buildings into significant parts with 
different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors. While the unit rates based on square metres could be 
supported from market evidence (level 2) other inputs (such as estimates of useful life, pattern of consumption and 
asset condition) required extensive professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of 
fair value. As such these assets were classified as having been revalued using level 3 valuation inputs. 

The following table provides a summary of the unobservable inputs and an assessment of the sensitivity of these to 
fair value measurement. 

Sensitivity to I 
Asset Unobservable inputs unobservable market Amount of potential impact 

inputs% 
i 

Buildings & Other I 
Structures (Cost Lower Upper ! Lower Upper 

Approach) i 
Relationship between asset ! 

I 

Specialised consumption rating scale 1 l 

Buildings and the level of consumed (5%) 
__ 5%--~ ($2,02~300) L $2.027.300 

service potential 
'----- -rotal ~~- ---· -·-----
---· 

Relationship between asset 

Other Structuras consumption ra!ing scale 
(5%) 5% ($164,550) $164,550 

and the level of consumed 
S1!r<Ace ~otential 

-------
Total 

~- -
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i 1 Fair Value Measurements cont. 

The notes following under the heading of Recurring Fair Value Measurements ap?IY equally i o Specialisad Buildings 
(level3) 

Infrastructure ase~ts (level 3} 

AU infrastructure assets were fair valued usins written down current replacemsnl cost. This valuation comprises the 
assets current replacement cost (CRC) less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect 
delivery the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset. Council first determined the gross 
cost of replacing the full seruice potential of the asset and adjusted this amount to take account of the expired service 
potential of the asset 

CRC was measured by reference to the lowest cost at which the gross future economic benefits of the asset could 
currently be obtained in the normal course of business. Where existing assets were over designed, had excess 
capacity, or were redundant an adjustment was made so that the resulting valuation reflected the cost of replacing the 
existing economic benefits based on an efficient set of modern equivalent assets to achieve 'Jhs required level of 
service output within the Council's planning horizon. 

OJ Recu"inq fair value measurements 

Specialised Buildings and Infrastructure Assets 

The last full valuation of Council's infrastructure assets was undertaken by independent valuer, APV Valuers and 
Asset Management effective 1 July 2014. Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, stormwater and flood 
mitigation, aerodrome landing strips, water and sewerage. 

Valuation techniques • the Cost Approach 

As this method is based on determining the Depreciated Replacement Cost the valuation methodology is intrinsically 
linked to the concept of Depreciation as defined in the Australian Accounting Standards. Fair value measures the 
relative level of remaining service potential embodied within the asset whereas depreciation expense measures the 
rate of consumption of the service potential. 

In accordance with the depreciation requirements of MSB 116, "complex assets" are componentised and 
depreciated separately. This included separating out the short-term part of a component from the long life (recyclable) 
part. All assets above the revaluation threshold are componentised. 

To determine the Depreciated Replacement Cost the following process was applted: 

(i) Determination of the Replacement Cost (Gross). 

(ii) Assessment of the level of remaining service potential of the Depreciable Amount using a Consumption Rating 
Scoring rT)atrix. This provides an objective scoring method that considers both the holistic factors (functionality, 
capacity, utilisation, obsolescence) and component specific factors such as physical condition and maintenance 
history. 

The valuation process essentially involves dissecting the asset lifecycle into a range of phases and using a stepped 
approach to determine the rate of depreciation. Depending on the asset and how it is consumed different patterns of 
consumption emerge reflecting the reality of where the assets are within their asset lifecycle. 

Components 

Infrastructure assets valued using the ~ost approach have been componentised. fhis included separating out the 
short-life part of a component from the long-life (recyclable) part. These components have been determined based .:;n 
the relative materiality of the cost and that each typically reflects a different useful life or pattern of consumption. 

Valuation Inputs 

The 1<ey valuation inputs used to determine the Depreciated Replacement Cost were:-
(i) Gross replacement cost bas9d on actual dimensions and unit rates derived from market evidence. 
(ii) Split between short-life and long-life (recyclable) parts of each component based on consideration of likely future 
asset management treatment. 

(iii) Pattern of consumption based on expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefit embodied wilhin 
the asset. Takes into account physical degradation as well as the potential impact of changes in functiona lity, 
capacity, obsolescence and other limits. 

(iv) Consumption score based on physical ct1aracteristics as well as potential impact of changes in functionality, 
capacity, obsolescence and other limits. 
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i 1 Fair Value Measurements &ont. 

Pattern of Consumption 

In accordance with AAS3 116 Propert;, Plant and Equipment depreciation is bas:;d on the most appropriate pattem 
of consumption. The patterns selected were based on developing an understanding of the factors which would impaci 
the consumption of future economic benefit. Consideration was also given to the level of assurance that could be 
assigned to the estimated useful life based on the expected life of the asset and the potential level of variation of the 
likely useful life. 

Consumption Score 
In order to assess the level of remaining service potential the following Consumption Scoring System was applied. 

·--Phase points 
-~---

Description 
OH -OM New or very good condition - very high level of remaining service potential. 

1H - 1M Not new but in very good condition with no indications of any future 
obsolescence and providing a high level of remaining service potential. 

-
2H -2M Aged and in good condition, providing an adequate level of remaining setvice 

potential. No signs of immediate or short term obsolescence. 

3H -3M Pfoviding an adequate level of remaining service potential but there are some 
concerns over the assets ability to continue to provide an adequate level of 
setvice on the short to medium term. May be signs of obsolescence in the 
short to medium term. 

4H -4M Indicators showing the need for renewal, upgrade or scrap in near future. 
Should be reflected by inclusion in the Capital Works Plan to renew or 
replace in short-term. 

5H -5M At intervention point. No longer providing an acceptable level of service. If 
remedial action is not taken immediately the asset will need to be closed or 
decommissioned. 

6 - end of life Theoretical end of life. 

The ·w denotes the top rating of the range and the "M" denotes the midpoint of the range. 

The above scale is not a condition score. The scoring process included consideration of a range of factors in addition 
to physical condition. They included:-

Holistic level Component 
level 

Functionality Physical 
Capacity 
Utilisation Breakage & 
Safety history 
Obsolescence 
Equitable access 

All network infrastructure assets wer-s valued using level 3 valuation tnputs using the cosl approach. 

This approach estimated the replacement cost for each asset by componentising the assets into significant parts with 
different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors. While the unit rates based on square metres o r 
similar capacity could be supported from markel evidence (level 2) other inputs (such as estimates of residual value, 
useful life, pattern of consumption and asset condition) required extensive professional judgement and impacted 
significantly on the final determination of fair value. As such these assets were classified as having been valued using 
level 3 valuation inputs. 
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11 Fair Value Measurements cont. 

With regard to infra$tnrcllHe assgts d!..lting !he year lhere were a number oi new projec!s compleled when~ ~he actual 
:ost was recorded and ~he impa~ nf depreciation at :tear end was negligible. Wh;Je !hese co:Jid be clas.sified as 
'lalued at le•Jel 2 given 1he low propor!!on of lhe total portfolio that these represented and t:~a Jil<alihocd ~he! in :utura 
•JaiJJ(l!ions they would most llke!y ba valued at lev:!! 3 we have adopted a policy 1hat all i;;fiastruclt.:ra asse~s are 
deemed to be valued al level 3. 

The quantitative disclosures of the remaining service potential relating to each corresponding condition score for each 
of the patterns of consumption utilised in this valuation are as follows:-

' 

i 

-·~~·~-~ 

% RSP of De reelable Amount 
Consumption 

Description I Straight Low Mod High Extreme 
Scar~ t line 

0 New or vert good condition - very high level of ram a ining 
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

service potential. 
Not new but in very good condition with no indicators of any 

I future obsolescence and providing a high level of remaining 85% 92% 94% 98% 100% 
service potential. 

Aged and in good condition, providing an adequate tevel Di 
2 remaining service potential. No signs of immediate or sho~ 50% 65%· 75% 85% ~9% 

I term obsolescence. 
Provides an adequate level of remaining service potential 

3 but there are some concerns over the assets ability to 
25% 40% 54% ?D% ! ~;o% 

continue to provide an adequate level of service in the short 
to medium term. ~ 

Indicators showing the need for renew, upgrade or scrap in 
I 

4 the near future. Should be replaced by inclusion in the 
10% ; 20% 34% 45% 70% capital works Plan to renew or replace in short te rm. Very 

low level of remainillQ_ service _!!otential. -At intervention point. No longer providing an acceptable 
5 level of service. 1f remedial action Is not taken immediately 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

the asset will need to be closed or decommissioned. 
s Theoretical end of life. Fufur written off -·-

·--· 
(ii) Non-recurring fair value measurements 

No assets were valued as a non-recurring valuation. 

The following tables provides a summary of the unobservable inputs and an assessment of the a.ensitivity of these to 
the fair value measurement 

Fair value sensitivity to unobservable inputs- Road, drainage and bridge network, and aerodrome landing strips. 

~~-~--_:,.ls:;et-· ~- ~ - - ~~n=~:::~~-o~ts~ ~-,:~~)~:e~~~I!v ~~::-- --·~=·~-~~~~~~::nt:~·::~~~-- - J 
inputs % 

J 

I 
ln1rrastwc ture 

j Lower Upper 
i 

{Cost Approach) 
t ower Upper i 

Roads, drainage, : 1 

i 
h:idgas, :mt.! ' Condition of the asset (5%) 5% ($10,380,950) $10,380,950 
.~emdmme 

~<J nding strips 

Roads, drainage, 
,qelatlomhip .batween 

asset consumption i bridg:=s, and 
rating scale and the (5%) 5% 

I 
($10,380,950) $10,380,950 

Ae rodrome 
landing strips 

level of consumed 

I service pote ntia l 
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11 Fair Value Measurements cont. 

Fair value sensitivity to unobservable inputs- Water and Sewerage assets. 

Sensitivity to 
Asset unobservable inputs unobse;vable market 

inputs% 

Water & Sewer 

I 
I 
! Lower Upper (Cost Approach) 

All asset classes Condition of the asset (5%) 5% 

Relationship between asset 

All asset classes I 
ccnsumption ra~ng scale and 

(5%) 5% the level of consumed service i 
I 

potential j 

The Valuation Procesii 

. 

Amount of potential impact 

Lower Upper 

($1 ,543,200) $1 ,54 3,200 

($1 ,54::1,200) $1,343,200 I 
r 

The Council engages external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of its infrastructure 
assets at least every five years as per Council policy. An annual assessment is undertaken to determine whether the 
carrying amount of the assets is materially different from the fair value. If any variation is considered material a 
revaluation is undertaken either by comprehensive revaluation or by applying an interim revaluation using appropriate 
indices. 

Changes in level 2 and 3 fair values are analysed at the end of each reporting period and discussed between the 
Directors of Corporate Services and Engineering and with the Finance Manager. As at 1 July 2014 a comprehensive 
revaluation was undertaken for all infrastructure assets by APV Valuers and Asset Management. 

The main level 3 inputs used are derived and evaluated as follows: 

Asset Condition 
The nature of Roads and Stormwater network infrastructure is that there is a very large number of assets which 
comprise the network and as a result it is not physically possible to inspect every asset for the purposes of completing 
a revaluation. As a consequence reliance is placed on the accuracy of data held in the asset management system 
and its associated internal controls. This includes regular planned inspections and updates to the system following 
maintenance activities and renewal treatments. Likewise, especially for stormwater network infrastructure, a large 
portion of the portfolio is located underground and may only be inspected on an irregular basis. 

To provide assurance over the accuracy of this information and taking into account the cost-benefit of undertaking 
physical inspections the valuation has been delivered on the basis of a sampling approach of approximately 10% of 
each of the asset types where the data held in the system is verified by a physical inspection. Whilst the above 
approach, combined with internal controls associated with the asset management system, provides a high level of 
comfort over the condition of the data held in the asset management system it does not provide a guarantee ihat all 
the data is correct and the condition as recorded is valid as at the date of valuation. 

Relationship between asset consumption rating scale and the level of consumed service potential 

Under the cost approach the estimated cost to replace the asset is calculated and then adjusted to take account of an 
accumulated depreciation. In order to achieve this the valuer determines an assel consumption rating scale for each 
asset type based on the inter-relationship between a range of factors. These factors and their relationship to the fair 
value require professional judgement and ~nclude ass;gt condition, legal and commercial obsolescence and tha 
determination of key deprecia!ion related assumptions such as residual value, useful life and !)altern of consumption 
of the future economic benefit. 

The consumption rating scales wera based ;n!tially o;: !he past exp:eiience of the valuation firm and industry guides 
and were then updated to lake ir.lo account the e)(perience and understanding of Council's own engineers, asset 
management and iinance slaff. The results of the valuation were lurther evaluated by con·flrm£~tion againsl Council's 
own understanding of1he assets and the level of remaining service potential. 
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11 Fair Value Measurements cont. 

Changes in fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs flevel 3) 

The changes in levsl3 assets with recurring fair value measurements are detailed in note 18 (property, plant and 
equipment). However; since the non specialised buildings disclosed in that note comprise both level2 and 3 assets. 
the movement in level 3 non specialised buildings is detailed below. There have been no transfers between level 1, 2 
or 3 measurements during the year. 

Changes In non-specialised buildings (level 3) 

Opening gross value as at 1 July 2014 

Additions 

Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation surplus 

T ranster between asset classes 

Closing gross value as at 30 June 2015 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Opening balance as at 1 July 2014 

Depreciation provided for in period 

Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation surplus 

Transfer between asset classes 

Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2015 

Book value as at 30 June 2015 

26 

;J 
OOO's 

53,313 

594 

(20) 

53,887 

8,688 

734 

1341 

10,763 

43,124 
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12 Trade and other payables 

Current 

Creditors and accruals 
Annual leave 
Sick leave 
Other entitlements 

2015 
Trade and other payabfes 
L..oans- QTC 
Finance leases 

2014 
Trade and other payables 
Loans- QTC 
Finance leases 

13 Borrowings 

Current 
:...oans - Queensland Treasury Corporation 

Finance lease · Conplant 

Non-current 
Loans · Queensland Treasury Corporation 

Finance lease . Conplant 

loans -Queensland Treasury 
Opening balance at beginning of financial 
Principal repayments 
Book va!ue at end of financial year 

Borrowings 

I 
! 

• 

G to 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years 

$000 $000 $000 

1,674 - -
635 1,843 1,566 

96 - -
2.405 1,843 1,566 

5,104 - -
761 2,014 1,988 
141 96 -

6,006 2,110 1,988 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

OOO's OOO's 

544 3,868 
832 904 
263 274 
36 58 

1,675 5, 104 

Total Carrying 
contractual amount 
cash flows 

$000 $000 

1,674 1,674 
4 ,044 4,044 

96 96 
5,814 5,814 

5 ,1 04 5,104 
4,763 4,763 

237 237 
10,104 10,104 

438 531 

140 
438 671 

2,562 3,000 

96 

2 562 3.096 

3,531 4 ,244 
(531) (713) 

3.000 3.531 

The QTC loan market value at ~he reporti:"lg date was $3.520,521 . This represents the vallJe ot tt'le aeot if Council repaid 
it at that date. As it is the intention of Council to hold the debt for its term, no provision is required to be made in these 
accounts The interest rates range from 7 01% to 7 61% and expected final payment dates vary from April 2016 to 
August 2026. The loans are guaranteed by the Queensland State Government 
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14 

15 

16 

2015 2014 

$ $ 

OOO's OOO's 
Provisions 

Current 
Long seJVice leave 1,145 1,136 

1,145 1,136 

Non-current 

Long service leave 141 173 
141 173 

Long service leave 

Balance at beginning of financial year 1,309 1,354 
Long seJVice leave entitlement arising 224 176 
Long SeJVice entitlement paid {247) (221) 
Balance at end of financial year 1,286 1.309 

Asset revaluation surplus 

Asset revaluation surplus analysis 
The closing balance of the asset 
revaluation surplus comprises the following 
asset categories: 

Land 2,089 2 ,089 
Buildings and other structures 32,235 32,235 

Parks 145 145 
Road, drainage and bridge network 119,092 16,582 
Water and sewerage infrastructure 25,815 5,605 
Aerodrome landing strip 8,588 7,714 

187,964 64 370 

Contingent Liabilities 

Local Government Mutual 

The Council is a member of the local government mutual liability self-insurance pool, LGM Queensland. In the event of 
the pool being wound up or it is unable to meet its debts as they fail due, the trust deed and rules provide that any 
accumulated deficit will be met by the individual pool members in the same proportion as their contribution is to the total 
pool contributions in respect to any year that a deficit arises. 

As at 30 June 2015 the financial statements reported an accumulated surplus and it is not anticipated any liabirity will 
arise. 

Locai Government Workcare 

The Council is a :-r.ember of lne Queenslan·:J local government worker's compensation serf-insurance scr.eme, Local 
Government Workcare. !Jnde; this scheme the Council has provided an indemnity towards a bank guarantee to cover 
bad d-eb!s which may ;emain should the self insurance licence be cancelled and there was insufficient funds available to 
cover outstanding !'abilities Only !he Queensland Government's workers compensation authority may call on any part of 
the guarantee should the above circumstances arise. The Council's maximum exposure to the bank guarantee is 
$256,506. 
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17 Superannuation 
The following note is based on advice received from LGSuper on 17 February 2015. 

The Council contributes to the Local Government Superannuation Scheme (Qid) {the scheme). The scheme is a Multi­
employer Plan as defined in the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 119 Employee Benefits . 

The Queens:and Local Government Superi:lnnuation Board, the trustee of the scheme, advised that the local government 
superannuation scheme was a complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the Commonwealth Superannuation 
Industry (Supervision) legislation. 

The scheme has three etements referred to as: 

The City Defir:ed Benefits Fund (CDBF) which covers "fomJ.;r members cr me City Super Defined Benefits fund. 
The Regional De!inw Benef:ts Fund ~Regior.al DBF) which ccvers defined benefit fur:d members working for regionai 

1aca1 governments; and the Accumulation Beneilts f u::d (ASF). 

Tne ABF is a defined contribt..'tion sche-me as defined io .AAS 8 1·1 9. Courh.::li has no iiabi!~ty to or ;r.?erest in the ABF other 
than the payment of me statutory contributions as required by the Local Government Act 2009 . 

Cot.Jncil does not have any employees who are members of the CDBF and. therefore, :s not exposed to the obligations, 
assats or costs associated with this fund. 

The Regional DBF is a defined benefit plan as defined in AAS8119. The Council is not able to account for the Regional 
DBF as a defined benefit plan in accordance with AASB119 because the scheme is unable to account to the Council for 
its proportionate share of the defined benefit obligation, plan assets and costs. The funding policy adopted in respect of 
the Regional DBF is directed at ensuring that the benefits accruing to members and beneficiaries are fully funded as they 
fall due. 

To ensure the ongoing solvency of the Regional DBF, the scheme's trustee can vary the rate of contributions from 
relevant local government employers subject to advice from the scheme's actuary. As at the reporting date, no changes 
had been made to prescribed employer contributions which remain at 12% of employee assets and there are no known 
requirements to change the rate of contributions. 

Any amount by which either fund is over or under funded would only affect future benefrts and contributions to the 
Regional DBF, and is not an asset or liability of the Council Accordingly there is no recognition in the financial 
statements of :my over or under funding of the scheme. 

As at the re~;:orting date, the assets of the s.:heme are sufficient to meet the vested benefits. 

The most recent actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2012. The actuary indicated that ''the 
Regional DBF is currently in a satisfactory but modest financial position and remains vulnerable to adverse short and 
medium term experience." 

Following the previous actuarial assessment in 2009, councils were advised by the trustee of the scheme, fcllowing 
advice from the scheme's actuary, that additional contributions may be imposed in the future at 9 leve' necessary to 
protect the entitlements of Regional DBF members. In the 2012 actuarial report the actuary has recommended no 
change to the employer contribution levels at this time. 

Under the Local Go'ie~rment Act 2009 the trus1ee of tre scheme has the p....--wer tc levy addit.iona! ~ontrlbutions on 
councils which have gmployees in the Regionai DBF when me actuary advises such addi~ional con~ributions are payable 
normally when the assets of the DBF are insufficient to meet mem~rs· benefits. 

There are curren!ly 72 entities contributing to the Regional DBf plan and ar.y changes in contribution rates would apply 
equally to all 72 entities. Murweh Council made !ess than 4% of the total ~ontributions to the plan in the 2013-14 financial 
year. 

The next actuarial investigation will be made as at 1 July 2015. 

The amount of superannuation contributions paid by 
Council to the scheme in this period for the benefit of 
employees was: 

29 
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Murweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

HI Trust funds held for outside parties 
Monies collected or held on behalf of other entities yet to be paid out to or 
on behalf of t hose entities 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

OOO's OOO's 

95 278 

Funds held ln the trust account on behaif of outside parties inc!ude chose funds from the ;Saie of !and for arrears in rates, 
ctepos~ts tar the contracted sale of land, security deposits lodged to guarantee performance and unclaimed monies (e.g. 
wages} paid into the trust account by the Council. The Council performs only a cus~odian rcia in respect of mese monies 
and because the. monies car. not be used for Council purposes, they are (lOt considered ~evenue ncr brought to account 
in t!'le fina!'lciat statements. 

19 Reconciliation of net operating surplus for the year to net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 

Net operating result {2,100) 46,043 
Non-cash operating items: 
Depreciation and amortisation 4,606 2,694 

4,606 2,694 
Investing and development activities: 
Net (profit)/loss on disposal of non-current assets 73 164 
Capital grants and contributions (927) (50, 141) 

(854) (49,977) 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
(Increase)/ decrease in receivables 4,770 (2,772) 

(lncrease)/decrease in inventory 12 (16) 
lncrease/{decrease) in payables (3,429) 1,858 

lncrease/(decrease) in provisions (23) (39) 
1,330 (969) 

Net cash inflow I (outflow) from operat ing activities 2,982 ~2.209) 

20 Correction of error: accrued revenue 
In the process of reconciling the total funds spent and received on tlood damage the Council's project manager 
calculated that at the 30 June 2014 there was a wash up amount of $4.4M owing to Council by the Queensland 
Reconstruction Authority. This proved to be incorrect with Council receiving only $2.22M resulting in an overstatement o'f 
acc;ued revenue of $2.18M. This error has been corrected by adjusting the closing values at 30 June 2014. 

The 9djustments are as follows: 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

Capital revenue 

Net result 

Statement of Financial Performance 

Trade and other receivables 

Retained surplus 

21 Events after the reporting period 

There were no material adjusting events after the balance date. 
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As at 30 
June 2014 

$000 

50,141 

48,223 

8.525 

~10,642 

2013/2014 

-2,180 

-2,180 

-2,180 

-2,180 

Restated 

$000 

47,961 

46.043 

6,345 

108,462 



MUiweh Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the )'ear e:n.dE:d 30 June 2015 

22 Financial instruments 

Murweh Shire Council has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments: 

- credit risk 
- liquidity risk 
- market risk 

This note provides information (both qualitative and quantitative) ro assist statement users evaluate the 
significance of financial instruments on the Council's financial position and financial perfotmance, including the 
nature and extent of risks and how t~e Council manages t~1ese exposures. 

Financial risk management 

Mur..veh Shire Council is responsible for the estabi!shment and cversight of the risk management framework, 
together with developing and monitoring risk management policies. 

Council's risk management approves policies for overall risk management, as well as specifically for managing 
credit, liquidity and market risk. 

The Council's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced, to set appropriate 
limits and controls and to monitor these risks and adherence against limits. The Council aims to manage volatility 
to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council. 

Murweh Shire Council does no'i enter into derivatives 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a counterparty to a iinancia! instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations. These obligations arise principally from the Council's investments and receivables from customers. 

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of credit counterparty ability to meet payment 
obligations. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. 

Investments in financial instruments are required to be made with Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) or 
similar state/ commonwealth bodies or financial institutions in Australia, in line with the requirements of 1he 
StatlJtcr; Bcdie3 .Fm&n-cJ'3i Arrangements Act f982. 

N c collateral is held as security rel::~tlng to the financial assets held by Murweh Shire Council. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
The Council may be exposed to credit risk through its ;nvestments •r. the QTC Cash Fund. The QTC C.ash Fund is 
an asset management portfolio that invests with a wide rar.ge of high credi! rated r.:o•.mterparties. Deposits with 
the QTC Cash Fund are capital guaranteed. Workir.g Capital Fadlity deposits have a duration cf one day and aH 
investments are required to have a minimum credft rating of "A-". therefore the likel!hood of the counterparty 
ha11ing capacity to meet its financial commitments is s:rong 

Trade and other receivables 
In the case of rate receivables, !he Council has the power to sell the property to recover any defaulted amounts 
In effect this power protects the Councll against credit risk in the case of defaults 

In other cases, the Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal 
business credit. protection procedures to minimise the risk. 
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22 Financial instruments cont. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Council will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its 
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset 

Murweh Shire Council is exposed to liquidity risk through its normal course of business and through its borrowings 
with QTC and other financial institutions. 

Council manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient undrawn facilities, both short and long term, 
to cater for unexpected volatility in cash flows. These facilities are disclosed in the Notes 8 and 13. 

The following table sets out the liquidity risk in relation to financial liabilities held by the Council. 

It represents the remaining contractual cash flows (principal and interest) of financial liabil ities at the end of the 
reporting period, excluding the impact of netting agreements. 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Council's income or the 
value of its holdings of financial instruments. 

Interest rate risk 

Murweh Shire Council is exposed to interest rate risk through investments and borrowings with QTC. 

The Council has access to a mix of variable and fixed rate funding options through QTC so that interest rate risk 
exposure can be minimised. 

Sensitivity 
Sensitivity to interest rate movements is shown for variable financial assets and liabilities based on the carrying 
amount at reporting date. 

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates 
(assumed to be 1 %) would have on the profit and equity, based on the carrying values at the end of the reporting 
period. The calculation assumes that the change in interest rates would be held constant over the period. 

Net carrying Effect on Profit Effect on Equity 
amount 1% increase1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 

Council $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 
2015 
QTC cash fund 3,420 34 (34) 34 (34) 
Loans- QTC (3,000) (30) 30 (30) 30 
Net total 420 4 (4) 4 (4) 

2014 
QTC cash fund 736 7 (7) 7 (7) 
Loans- QTC (3,531) (35) 35 (35) 35 
Net total (2,795) 128) 28 (28) 28 

22 Financial instruments cont. 

Fair value 
The fair value of trade and other receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original 
transaction, less any allowance for impairment. - - - --
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The fair value of borrowings with QTC is based on the market value of debt outstanding. The market value of a 
debt obligation is the discounted value of future cash flows based on prevailing market rates and represents the 
amount required to be repaid if this was to occur at balance date. The market value of debt is provided by QTC 
and is disclosed in Note 13. 

QTC applies a book rate approach in the management of debt and interest rate risk, to limit the impact of market 
value movements to clients' cost of funding. The book value represents the carrying value based on amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. 

Council 

Financial assets 

QTC cash fund 

Financial liabilities 

Loans- QTC 

2015 
Carrying 

Amount 

$000 

3,420 

3,000 

33 

Fair 

Value 

$000 

3,420 

3,520 

2014 
Carrying Fair 

Amount Value 

$000 $000 

736 736 

3,531 4,040 
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Management Certificate 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to Sections 176 and 177 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 
(the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements. 

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that: 

(i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012 for the establishment and keeping 
of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and 

(iii) the general purpose financial statements as set out on pages 1 to 33 present a true and fair view in accordance w ith A ustralian Accounting 
Standards, of the Council's transactions for the financial year and financial position at the end of the year. 

Councillor D Cook 

Mayor 

Date: 30 I 04 I 1s-

·-

DB Niesler 

Acting Chief Executive Officer 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Mayor of Murweh Shire Council 

Report on the Financial Report 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Murweh Shire Council, which comprises 
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015, the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, 
and certificates given by the Mayor and the Acting Chief Executive Officer. 

The Council's Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Local 
Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012, including compliance with 
Australian Accounting Standards. The Council's responsibility also includes such internal 
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report 
that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The audit 
was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards, 
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit is planned 
and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and 
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control, 
other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial report. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinion. 



Independence 

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all 
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities 
and can be removed only by Parliament. 

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not 
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. 
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and 
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are 
significant. 

Opinion 

In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-Genera/ Act 2009-

(a) I have received all the information and explanations which I have required; and 

(b) in my opinion-

(i) the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of 
accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and 

(ii) the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed 
accounting standards, of the financial performance and cash flows of Murweh 
Shire Council for the financial year 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 and of the financial 
position as at the end of that year. 

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report 

Those viewing an electronic presentation of these financial statements should note that audit 
does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and 
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the 
financial statements. If users of the financial statements are concerned with the inherent risks 
arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy 
of the audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented 
information. 

r1 ...A I" ~. 
A.../ . ~ '\ 

DASTOLZ0A 
as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland Queensland Audit Office 

Brisbane 



Murweh Shire Council 
Current-year Financial Sustainability Statement 

For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Council's performance at 30 June 2015 against key financial ratios and targets: 

Operating surplus ratio 

Asset sustainability ratio 

Net financial liabilities ratio 

Note 1 Basis of preparation 

How the measure is calculated 

Net result (excluding capital items) 
divided by total operating revenue 
(excluding capital items) 

Capital expenditure on the replacement of 
assets (renewals) divided by the 
depreciation expense 

Total liabilities less current assets divided 
by total operating revenue (excluding 
capital items) 

Actual 

(16.61%) 

41.56% 

3.46% 

Target 

Between 

0% - 10% 

Greater 

than 90% 

Not greater 

than 60% 

The current financial sustainability statement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Government Regulation 2012 and the Financial Management Sustainability Guideline 2013. 
The amounts used to calculate the three reported measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn from the 
Council's audited general purpose financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015. 



Certificate of Accuracy 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

This cur;ent-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to section 178 of the Local Government Regulation_2012 (the 
regulation). 

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this current-year financial sustainability statement has been accurately 
calculated. 

~d 
Coamrntor~~ DB Niesler 

Mayor Acting Chief Executive Officer 

Date: .30/ 0'11~ 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Mayor of Murweh Shire Council 

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainabillty Statement 

I have audited the accompanying current-year financial sustainability statement, which is a 
special purpose financial report of Murweh Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2015, 
comprising the statement and explanatory notes, and certificates given by the Mayor and 
Acting Chief Executive Officer. 

The Council's Responsibility for the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement 

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current-year 
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012. 
The Council's responsibility also includes such internal control as the Council determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately 
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the current-year financial sustainability statement 
based on the audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of 
Queensland Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those 
standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit 
engagements and that the audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the statement is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the Council's preparation and fair presentation of the statement in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the statement. 

My responsibility is to form an opinion as to whether the statement has been accurately 
calculated based on the Council's general purpose financial report. My responsibility does not 
extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance of the reported ratios, nor 
on the Council's future sustainability. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinion. 



Independence 

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all 
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities 
and can be removed only by Parliament. 

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not 
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. 
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and 
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are 
significant. 

Opinion 

In accordance with s.212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all 
material respects, the current-year financial sustainability statement of Murweh Shire Council, 
for the year ended 30 June 2015, has been accurately calculated. 

Emphasis of Matter- Basis of Accounting 

Without modifying my opinion, attention is drawn to Note 1 which describes the basis of 
accounting. The current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared in 
accordance with the Financial Management (Sustainability} Guideline 2013 for the purpose of 
fulfilling the Council's reporting responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012. 
As a result, the statement may not be suitable for another purpose. 

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Statement 

Those viewing an electronic presentation of this special purpose financial report should note that 
audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and 
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the financial 
statements. If users of the financial statements are concerned with the inherent risks arising 
from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy of the 
audited financial. statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented information. 

D. ~/\···· 
D A STOLtiCPA 
as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland 

Queensland Audit Office 
Brisbane 



Murweh Shire Council 
Long-term Financial Sustainability Statement 

For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Council's budgeted performance against key financial ratios and targets- 2016 to 2025 

Year ending 30 June 2015 2016 2017 

Target 

2018 

Operating surplus ratio Net result divided by Between (-17%} (-15%} (-12%} 
total revenue 0% - 10% 

Asset sustainability ratio Capital expenditure Greater 45% 56% 61% 
on the replacement of than 90% 
assets (renewals) 
divided by the 
depreciation 
expense. 

Net financial liabilities ratio Total liabilities less Not greater 3.7% 3.7% 3.6% 
current assets divided than 60% 
by total operating 
revenue 

Murweh Shire Council's 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 

(-9%} (-6%) (-2%) (1%} (3%) (4%) (4%) 

69% 75% 81% 90% 92% 94% 96% 

3.0% 3.3% 3.4% 3.2% 3.4% 3.6% 3.5% 

Council measures revenue and expenditure trends over time as a guide to future requirements and to make decisions about the efficient allocation of 
resources to ensure the most effective provision of services. Council ensures that its financial management strategy is prudent and that its long-term financial 
forecast shows a sound financial position whilst also being able to meet the community's current and future needs. 



Certificate of Accuracy 
For the long term financial sustainability statement prepared as at 30 June 2015 

This iong term financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to section 178 of the Local Government Regulation 
2012 (the regulation). 

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this long term financial sustainability statement has been 
accurately calculated. 

DB Niesler 
Mayor Acting Chief Executive Officer 

Date: 30 I og I IS 
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